
__________________________________________________________ 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING PACKET
__________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Board Chair –Tom Herrin, Secretary – Craig Coppock,  

Commissioner – Wes McMahan, Commissioner-Van Anderson & 
Commissioner-Chris Schumaker 

August 28, 2024 @ 3:30 PM 
Conference Room 1 & 2 or Join Zoom Meeting: 

https://myarborhealth.zoom.us/j/88957566693 
Meeting ID: 889 5756 6693 

One tap mobile:+12532158782,,88957566693# 
Dial: +1 253 215 8782 

__________________________________________________________

Pg 1 Board Packet

https://myarborhealth.zoom.us/j/88957566693


 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

Agenda  

Executive Session 

Department Spotlight 

Board Committee Reports  

Consent Agenda 

Old Business 

New Business 

Superintendent 

 
  

Pg 2 Board Packet



 
  

LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 
REGULAR BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING 

August 28, 2024 at 3:30 p.m. 
Conference Room 1 & 2 or via ZOOM 

https://myarborhealth.zoom.us/j/88957566693 
Meeting ID: 889 5756 6693 

One tap mobile:+12532158782,,88957566693# 
Dial: +1 253 215 8782 

 
 Mission Statement 
To foster trust and nurture a healthy community. 

 
Vision Statement 

To provide every patient the best care and every employee the best place to work. 
 

AGENDA PAGE TIME 
Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Excused/Unexcused Absences 
Reading of the Mission & Vision Statement 
Approval or Amendment of Agenda 
Conflicts of Interest  

  
 

3:30 pm 

Comments and Remarks 
• Commissioners 
• Audience   

 3:35 pm 

Guest Speaker(s) 
• David Imus, CPA & Dang Ta, Senior Accountant, Wipfli, LLP 

o 2023 Independent Auditor Report 
o Q &A 

 
6 

3:45 pm 
 

4:15 pm 

Executive Session- RCW 70.41.200  
• Medical Privileging-Chief of Staff Dr. Victoria Acosta & Medical Staff Coordinator 

Barb Goble 

 
49 

 
4:30 pm 

Department Spotlight 
• Emergency Department, Dr. Vincent Ball & Laura Glass 

 
51 

4:35 pm 

Board Committee Reports  
• Hospital Foundation Report-Committee Chair-Board Chair Herrin/Foundation Manager 

Jessica Scogin  

 
75 

 
4:45 pm 

• Compliance Committee Report- Committee Chair-Commissioner McMahan  4:50 pm 
• Finance Committee Report- Committee Chair-Commissioner McMahan 77 4:55 pm 

Consent Agenda (Action) 
• Approval of Minutes: 

o July 31, 2024, Regular Board Meeting 
o August 14, 2024, Compliance Committee Meeting 
o August 21, 2024, Finance Committee Meeting 

 
 

82 
91 
95 

5:05 pm 

Pg 3 Board Packet

https://myarborhealth.zoom.us/j/88957566693


 

• Warrants & EFTs in the amount of $4,571,150.08 dated July 2024 99 
• Resolution 24-15-Declaring to Surplus or Dispose of Personal Property 

o To approve liquidation of items beyond their useful life. 
102 

• Approve Documents Pending Board Ratification 08.28.24  
o To provide board oversight for document management in Lucidoc. 

104 

Old Business    
New Business 

• Board Policy & Procedure Review 
o Commissioner Compensation for Meetings and Other Services 
o Distribution of Board and Committee Packets 
o Hospital Declaration of Personal Property as Surplus  
o Records Retention 

 
 

107 
109 
110 
111 

5:10 pm 

Superintendent Report  
• Board Educational Article 

114 
115 

5:15 pm 

Meeting Summary & Evaluation  5:25 pm 
Next Board Meeting Dates and Times 

• Regular Board Meeting-September 25, 2024 @ 3:30 PM (ZOOM & In Person) 
Next Committee Meeting Dates and Times 

• QIO Committee Meeting-September 11, 2024 @ 12:00 PM (ZOOM) 
• Finance Committee Meeting-September 18, 2024 @ 12:00 PM (ZOOM) 

  

Adjournment  5:30 pm 
 

Pg 4 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GUEST SPEAKER  

Pg 5 Board Packet



July 16, 2024 

Board of Commissioners 
Lewis County Public Hospital District No. 1 dba Arbor Health 
PO Box 1138
Morton, Washington 98356

Dear Commissioners: 

We have audited the financial statements of Lewis County Public Hospital District No. 1 dba 
Arbor Health (the “District”) for the year ended December 31, 2023 and have issued our 
report thereon dated July 16, 2024.  Professional standards require that we provide you with 
the following information related to our audit: 

Our Responsibility Under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States 

As stated in our engagement letter dated August 17, 2023 our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements 
prepared by management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Our 
audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities. 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of the District’s compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants.  However, the objective of our tests was not to 
provide an opinion on compliance with such provisions.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope, timing, and with respect to significant 
risks identified by us, all of which were previously communicated to your representative, Tom 
Herrin, (Chairman), communicated in our engagement letter dated August 17, 2023. 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The 
significant accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies 
was not changed during 2023.  

Pg 6 Board Packet



We noted no transactions entered into by the District during the year for which there is a lack 
of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the 
financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that 
future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. 

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.  Certain financial 
statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users.  

The significant estimates requiring judgment are as follows:

The adequacy of the allowance for accounts receivable is one of the most subjective
estimates affecting the financial statements.  The allowance for accounts receivable is
maintained at a level which management believes is adequate to provide for possible write-
offs.  Management periodically evaluates the adequacy of the allowance using the 
District’s past bad debt experience, known and inherent risks in accounts receivable, 
current economic conditions, and other relevant factors.  We evaluated the key factors 
and assumptions used to develop the allowance for accounts receivable in determining 
that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The estimated final settlements on the Medicare cost reports are based on audits
conducted by the fiscal intermediary.  Management periodically evaluates the adequacy of
the balance using the District’s experience, known and inherent risks in the preparation of
these cost reports, and risks associated with doing business in the health care industry.  
We reviewed the estimated settlements recorded for each open year to determine the
reasonableness of the estimates based on the results of previous audits by the fiscal
intermediary.

The adequacy of the reserve for self-funded health insurance claims is also subjective.  The
reserve for health insurance claims is maintained at a level which management believes is
adequate to cover claims incurred during the year ended December 31, 2023, but not paid
until after December 31, 2023.  Management periodically evaluates the reserve using the
District’s past experience, known claims, and other relevant factors.  We evaluated the key
factors and assumptions used to develop the reserve for health insurance claims in
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements.

Pg 7 Board Packet



Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit.  

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

We proposed no audit adjustments that could, in our judgment, either individually or in the 
aggregate, have a significant effect on the District’s financial reporting process. 

Disagreements With Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, 
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be 
significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that 
no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 
management representation letter dated July 16, 2024, a copy of which accompanies this 
letter. 

Management Consultations With Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a 
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the District’s financial 
statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those 
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to 
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants.  

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles 
and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s 
auditors.  However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional 
relationship and our responses were not, in our judgment, a condition of our retention. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of 
Commissioners and, if appropriate, management and is not intended to be, and should not be, 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Pg 8 Board Packet



We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Lewis County Public Hospital District No. 1
dba Arbor Health.  

Sincerely, 

Wipfli  LLP  

Enc. 

Pg 9 Board Packet



Pg 10 Board Packet



Pg 11 Board Packet



Pg 12 Board Packet



Pg 13 Board Packet



Pg 14 Board Packet



Pg 15 Board Packet



Pg 16 Board Packet



Pg 17 Board Packet



Pg 18 Board Packet



Pg 19 Board Packet



Pg 20 Board Packet



Pg 21 Board Packet



Pg 22 Board Packet



Pg 23 Board Packet



Pg 24 Board Packet



Pg 25 Board Packet



Pg 26 Board Packet



Pg 27 Board Packet



Pg 28 Board Packet



Pg 29 Board Packet



Pg 30 Board Packet



Pg 31 Board Packet



Pg 32 Board Packet



Pg 33 Board Packet



Pg 34 Board Packet



Pg 35 Board Packet



Pg 36 Board Packet



Pg 37 Board Packet



Pg 38 Board Packet



Pg 39 Board Packet



Pg 40 Board Packet



Pg 41 Board Packet



Pg 42 Board Packet



Pg 43 Board Packet



Pg 44 Board Packet



Pg 45 Board Packet



Pg 46 Board Packet



Pg 47 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Pg 48 Board Packet



 

  
-notates files with items to note. 

 
CONFIDENTIAL: Arbor Health peer review and quality improvement information protected from 
 disclosure or discovery under RCW 70.41.200 and 4.24.250 
 

 

MEDICAL STAFF PRIVILEGING 

The below providers are requesting appointment to the Arbor Health Medical Staff. All files have 
been reviewed for Quality Data, active state license, any malpractice claims, current liability 
insurance, peer references, all hospital affiliations, work history, National Practitioner Data Bank 
reports, sanctions reports, Department of Health complaints, Washington State Patrol background 
check and have been reviewed by the credentialing and medical executive committees including the 
starred items below. The credentialing and medical executive committees have recommended the 
following for approval. 

INITIAL APPOINTMENTS-0 

Radiology Consulting Privileges 
•  Zachary Ashwell, MD 

Telestroke/Neurology Consulting Privileges 
• Binod Wagle, MD 

REAPPOINTMENTS-0 

Arbor Health  
• Mark Hansen, MD 

Radiology Consulting Privileges 
• Timothy Jan, DO 

• Michael Peters, MD 

• Daniel Susanto, MD 

• Milton Van Hise, MD 

Telestroke/Neurology Consulting Privileges 
• Michael Chen, MD 

• Lilith Judd, MD 

• Soo Young Kwon, MD 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pg 49 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT SPOTLIGHT 

Pg 50 Board Packet



Arbor Health
Emergency Department

Vincent Ball, MD
Laura Glass

Pg 51 Board Packet



Agenda

• Facts about the ER
• Scope
• Capabilities
• Limitations/Constraints

• Metrics
• Volumes
• Quality
• Transfer
• Trauma/Strokes

• The Future
• Issues

Pg 52 Board Packet



Our Scope

• The Emergency Department (ED) provides a medical screening exam on 
everyone. Required by law

• Triage  5 Beds, 2 Hallway Beds

• Care for all ages

• The ED is staffed 24/7/365 by a physician, 1-2 RNs, and an ED Tech.

• 1) Admit to floor or surgery, 2) Discharge, 3) Transfer
• Inpatient capability: Non-ICU
• Surgery M-Thursday daytime. No weekend or call capabilities

• Agreements with Telestroke, Providence St Peter’s for Stroke/MI

• Averaging about 15 patient per day with increasing volumes

• Prehospital EMS is by primarily BLS volunteer ambulance crews

• 1 ALS crew for sicker transfers

• 2 Air Ambulance Services, weather dependent, landing at airfield

Pg 53 Board Packet



Arbor Health Morton Hospital is an active participant in the 
state Trauma Registry and Emergency Cardiac & Stroke System.   
We are currently designated as

• Trauma Level V
• Emergency Cardiac Level II
• Emergency Stroke Level III

Pg 54 Board Packet



Emergency 
Medical 
Treatment & 
Labor Act

Affectionately 
known as 
EMTALA 

• EMTALA is a federal law enacted over 30 years ago with the 
simple concept to:  AKA Anti-Dumping

• evaluate and stabilize all patients suffering a medical emergency who 
come to a hospital’s emergency department regardless of their ability to 
pay.

• Under EMTALA, Arbor Health is required to provide a medical 
screening examination (MSE) to any individual who comes to 
the emergency department to identify an emergency medical 
condition (EMC)

• Only the ED physician can conduct the medical screening exam

• Must stabilize to hospital’s capability 
• Must have accepting physician before transferring a patient
• No OB capability, ultrasound only during daytime, no surgical 

subspecialists at Arbor Health

Pg 55 Board Packet



Washington State Trauma System

Trauma center levels across the United States 
are identified into 5 different levels.  The 
different levels (ie. Level I, II, III, IV or V) refer 
to the kinds of resources available in a 
trauma center and the number of patients 
admitted yearly.  

Participation in the Trauma System verifies 
the presence of the resources for one’s 
trauma level and includes a commitment, 
readiness, resources, policies, patient care, 
and performance improvement.

Pg 56 Board Packet



Washington State Trauma System Levels
• Level I Trauma Center is a comprehensive regional resource 

that is a tertiary care facility central to the trauma system. A 
Level I Trauma Center is capable of providing total care for 
every aspect of injury – from prevention through 
rehabilitation. (Harborview)

• Level II Trauma Center is able to initiate definitive care for all 
injured patients. (Tacoma)

• Level III Trauma Center has demonstrated an ability to 
provide prompt assessment, resuscitation, surgery, intensive 
care and stabilization of injured patients and emergency 
operations. (Olympia & Puyallup)

• Level IV Trauma Center has demonstrated an ability to 
provide advanced trauma life support (ATLS) prior to 
transfer of patients to a higher level trauma center.  It 
provides evaluation, stabilization, and diagnostic capabilities 
for injured patients.  (Centralia, Tacoma, Elma)

• Level V Trauma Center provides initial evaluation, 
stabilization and diagnostic capabilities and prepares 
patients for transfer to higher levels of care. (Arbor Health)

Pg 57 Board Packet



Arbor Health Level V Trauma
Level V Trauma Center provides initial evaluation, 
stabilization and diagnostic capabilities and 
prepares patients for transfer to higher levels of 
care.

• Basic emergency department facilities to 
implement ATLS protocols.

• Available trauma nurse(s) and physicians available 
upon patient arrival.

• After-hours activation protocols if facility is not 
open 24-hours a day.

• May provide surgery and critical-care services IF 
available.  

• Has developed transfer agreements for patients 
requiring more comprehensive care at a Level I 
through III Trauma Centers. 

Pg 58 Board Packet



Pg 59 Board Packet



A Matter of Time. . .
Closest PCI:  
Olympia, Tacoma, 
Puyallup, or 
Vancouver

Closest Primary 
Stroke Center:
Tacoma, Olympia, 
or Vancouver

Pg 60 Board Packet



A Matter of Time. . .
Closest Trauma :  
Level 1: Seattle
Level 2: Tacoma

Pg 61 Board Packet



Washington State 
Emergency Cardiac & Stroke System

Volunteer
BLS, mostly

Pg 62 Board Packet



Washington State Emergency Cardiac & 
Stroke System

Created in 2010 to save lives and reduce disability for heart attack, cardiac arrest, and stroke patients.

Pg 63 Board Packet



 2021-2024 Accomplishments

       
 

• Renewed Trauma Level V designation
• Renewed Cardiac Level II certification
• Renewed Stroke Level III certification
• Had a clean DOH survey 
• Fully staffed Emergency Department physicians
• Consistently high patient satisfaction scores
• Adventure Medics Ambulance Services (Onalaska)

Pg 64 Board Packet



Patient Volumes/Dispositions: 
01 Jan -17 August 2023/2024

Total Pt 
Encounters

Admits Transfers Discharged EMS
Arrivals

Avg ED 
LOS

LWOT/
LWBS

Law Enf Expired

3778
2024

198 
(5.2%)

203
(5.4%)

3218
(85%)

486
(12.9%)

1.9 hr 113 11 12

3691
2023

229  
(6.2%)

206
(5.6%)

3068
(83%)

540
(14.6%

3.0 hr 174 7 5

Pg 65 Board Packet



Emergency Department

Quality and Patient Safety Metrics
2023/4 Metrics

Pg 66 Board Packet



PRC Voices Report- ER
• Excellent all around. Couldn’t have expected 

anything better

• The Doctors and nurses are always so kind. If your 
honest they don’t judge you or make you feel bad 
about yourself. I appreciate everything they did for 
me. They are very fast in getting you in and out. 

• I wouldn’t change a things in there. I don't know 
about the other doctors but that one I went to in 
the emergency ward. Thank you. 

• Everyone we encounter was kind, caring, and 
helpful. We are lucky there were no other patients, 
but I’d like to think the experience would be the 
same if there had been

• The overall care and service was excellent

• The new provider Karen was amazing and very 
caring. I would 100% recommend her for care. She 
knew I was in pain and took no time getting me 
back and talking to 

• Absolutely the BEST ER I’ve been too. The rooms 
were sparkling clean,  and the staff was amazing. 
Friendly and kelp my friend in the loop

• Staff were friendly and informative

• The care of Dr and staff were great and 
understanding of my accident.

• Totally Great care

• The entire event was professional and assuring. 
First Class. 

• Super friendly staff. All seemed to work in 
harmony.

Pg 67 Board Packet



8/22/2024
18

Pg 68 Board Packet



8/22/2024
19

Pg 69 Board Packet



8/22/2024
20

Pg 70 Board Packet



8/22/2024
21

Pg 71 Board Packet



The Future
Issues/Opportunities:

• Hospital Nurse staffing
• National shortage
• Find good people….Keep good people

• Physician Staffing
• At some point may need to transition to 12 hr shifts
• Searching for 1 additional full-timer now

• Performance/Process Improvement:
• Stroke, STEMI, Sepsis…Continue to maintain/improve
• EMS: Communication, pre-hospital protocols

• Patient satisfaction      
• Maintain/Improve
•  Success directly correlates with throughput in the ER (low wait times) and 

how you treat, communicate with, and make people feel as patients

Pg 72 Board Packet



Thank you Very Much!

Questions?

Pg 73 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Pg 74 Board Packet



 

 

Arbor Health Foundation meeting 
08/13/2024 

 1.      Call to order   by Marc Fisher at  12:04 pm (late due to technical issues) 
OUR MISSION: To raise funds and provide services that will support the viability 
and long-term goals of the Lewis County Hospital District No. 1. This includes, but 
is not limited to, taking a leadership role in maintaining and improving 
community connections and confidence in all aspects of the hospital’s health 
care system.   
 

• ATTENDANCE: Katelin Forrest, Marc Fischer, Tom Herrin, Rob Mack, Jessica 
Scogin, Gwen Turner, Shannon Kelly, Jeanine Walker, Lynn Bishop, Christine 
Brower, Ann Marie Forsman 

• EXCUSED ABSENCES: Bonnie Justice, Kip Henderson 
 

2.     Approval of Treasurer’s Report and November Minutes  
 Motion to approve Minutes and Treasurers report Tom  moved to approve both, Katelin  
second. Motion carries. Katelin requested earmarked funds be itemized on future Treasurer’s 
reports.  
3.     Administrators Report-   There was a very good month in July even though the patient 
census was down, outpatients carried the month.  The Blueberry Festival and Jubilee were good 
for the hospital.  Approved two new patient lifts for in rooms. PT Massage Therapist is doing 
very well, looking for an additional, there is an offer pending. Replacing one washer and one 
dryer.  New PA starts tomorrow in Randle. Looking to purchase a piece software that will allow 
the CT to also do bone density scans, to allow patients to have that done here vs. Providence in 
Centralia. ARNP, Sarah Perlman, accepted an offer for a position in Mossyrock.  
 
4.     Executive Directors Report:  

• 50/50 raffle. Sold out in 35 minutes. There is a limit. Wondering if we can double 
it. Wanting to be sure we aren’t overwhelming the financial people onsite by 
selling 4,000 tickets instead of 2,000 tickets. 

• Auction (October 12)  
• Auction items (by October 2) – foundation members normally donate a prize 
• Color Run (September 14) – helpers needed, you get a t-shirt. 
• Mamos and Mocktails – October 26 
• Two scholarships awarded, certified orthopedic and a coding class. 
• The winner of the 50/50 raffle donated his half to the scholarship fund (over 

$1500) 
• Wellness committee – asked for 3 photography judges to help with photo Friday. 

Tom, Marc, and Lynn volunteered. 
 

Pg 75 Board Packet



 

 

5.     Old Business:   Auction Fund a need presentation by CNO Barbara Van Duren   - Comfort 
Furniture, Sleeper Chairs are $2308.74 (hoping for 8), and a couch for $3916.44. Total with tax, 
shipping. is $20,220.96.  Gwen moved to fund the auction fund a need now and Tom Herrin 
crackalin seconded it. Carries. 
6.     New Business: Employee grant: need for blood pressure cuffs. The cost is $34.99, asking 
for 34 for a total $1090. Katelin motion we grant the employee grant, Tom second. Motion 
carries. 

 
7. Next Meeting:  September 10, 6pm Potluck (hosted by Commissioner Herrin) evening 
meeting Jubilee Park. (Commissioner is doing hamburgers/hot dogs/buns).  Bring a +1. Need 
RSVP by Friday before so Tom can have numbers by Saturday. 
 
Adjoured at 12:47 
 
Good of the order please share.     

Pg 76 Board Packet



 

 
 

 

To:  Finance Committee 
From:  Finance Department 
Date:  August 10, 2024 
Subject:  July Financial Statement Review 
 
 
Volumes 
 
The district’s volume highlights show higher than expected results in Physician clinic visits, ED, and 
Outpatient visits. 

• ED volumes were ahead of budget by 141 visits or 30%. 
• Physician Clinic volumes were favorable to budget by 496 visits or 23%. 
• Outpatient visits were ahead of budget by 203 visits or 17%. 
 

Income Statement 
 
Results from Operations show net income of $277,380. Operating Revenues were ahead of budget by 
$525,166. Operating revenues being higher than expected was primarily due to increased volumes in the 
Emergency department.   
 
Revenue highlights 

• Emergency department revenues were favorable to budget by $623,741. 
• Outpatient revenues were favorable to budget by $272,987. 

 
Expense highlights    

• Salaries and Benefits expense were less than budget by $105,209 or 4%.  
• Benefits expense was under budget by $87,647. 
• Purchased Services expenses were over budget by $64,369. 

o This is primarily due to higher-than-expected IT software expenses. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pg 77 Board Packet



 

 
 

 

 
Balance Sheet 
 
Highlights in the Balance sheet show cash decreasing $285,910 and Accounts Receivable increasing 
$542,222. 
 

• Cash accounts decreased $285,910 to $4,870,113.   
o Days in cash decreased from 47 to 46 days.  

• Accounts receivable increased $542,222. 
o AR days increased from 51 to 54 days. 

 
 

 
 

Pg 78 Board Packet



 Lewis County Public Hospital District No. 1
Balance Sheet

July, 2024 Prior-Year Incr/(Decr)

Current Month Prior-Month end From PrYr

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash 4,870,113$               5,156,023 3,790,598 1,079,515
Total Accounts Receivable 10,386,345 9,844,123 9,103,176 1,283,170
Reserve Allowances (4,111,455) (3,625,745) (3,127,930) (983,525)

Net Patient Accounts Receivable 6,274,890 6,218,378 5,975,246 299,644

Taxes Receivable (40,081) (100,935) 38,809 (78,890)
Estimated 3rd Party Settlements 0 0 263,159 (263,159)
Prepaid Expenses 477,299 486,956 430,473 46,827
Inventory 247,638 251,751 241,343 6,296
Funds in Trust 1,819,271 1,907,537 1,862,265 (42,993)
Other Current Assets 17,677 17,677 54,623 (36,947)

Total Current Assets 13,666,807 13,937,387 12,656,515 1,010,292
Property, Buildings and Equipment 35,487,863 35,469,155 35,226,814 261,048
Accumulated Depreciation (26,074,146) (25,973,608) (25,383,328) (690,818)

Net Property, Plant, & Equipment 9,413,716 9,495,547 9,843,486 (429,770)
Right-of-use assets 1,210,960 1,247,823 844,612 366,348
Other Assets 3,211 3,321 3,982 (770)

Total Assets 24,294,695$             24,684,078 23,348,595 946,100

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 696,944 1,233,676 1,030,746 (333,802)
Accrued Payroll and Related Liabilities 1,336,466 1,205,366 1,206,309 130,157
Accrued Vacation 980,630 972,798 900,057 80,573
Third Party Cost Settlement 308,488 365,985 158,031 150,457
Interest Payable 25,581 153,785 0 25,580
Current Maturities - Debt 885,881 885,881 885,881 0
Other Payables 9,654 9,744 445,406 (435,752)

Current Liabilities 4,243,643 4,827,235 4,626,430 (382,787)
Total Notes Payable 596,613 622,438 776,435 (179,822)
Lease Liability 967,373 1,024,720 614,839 352,534
Net Bond Payable 4,426,094 4,426,094 4,426,094 0

Total Long Term Liabilities 5,990,081 6,073,252 5,817,369 172,712

Total Liabilities 10,233,724 10,900,487 10,443,799 (210,075)

General Fund Balance 12,904,796 12,904,796 12,904,796 0
Net Gain (Loss) 1,156,175 878,795 0 1,156,175

Fund Balance 14,060,971 13,783,591 12,904,796 1,156,175

Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 24,294,695$             24,684,078 23,348,595 946,100

Pg 79 Board Packet



 Lewis County Hospital District No. 1
Income Statement

July, 2024

C U R R E N T M O N T H Y E A R   T O   D A T E

Pr Yr Month % Var $ Var Budget Actual Actual Budget $ Var % Var Actual

440,452 -19% (142,356) 739,163 596,807 Inpatient Revenue 6,471,023 5,173,422 1,297,600 25% 4,838,741

3,803,358 23% 892,691 3,846,114 4,738,805 Outpatient Revenue 28,035,090 26,884,073 1,151,017 4% 25,064,179

417,555 4% 25,908 586,665 612,573 Clinic Revenue 4,196,431 4,106,657 89,774 2% 3,531,158

4,661,364 15% 776,243 5,171,942 5,948,185 Gross Patient Revenues 38,702,543 36,164,152 2,538,391 7% 33,434,079

1,833,993 -14% (283,098) 2,062,768 2,345,866 Contractual Allowances 15,152,412 13,367,389 (1,785,023) -13% 12,164,006

37,274 76% 47,268 62,042 14,774 Charity Care 444,390 388,372 (56,018) -14% 343,778

51,580 42% 30,122 72,113 41,992 Bad Debt 364,602 450,475 85,872 19% 532,652

1,922,846 -9% (205,709) 2,196,923 2,402,632 Deductions from Revenue 15,961,404 14,206,236 (1,755,168) -12% 13,040,435

2,738,518 19% 570,534 2,975,019 3,545,553 Net Patient Service Rev 22,741,139 21,957,917 783,222 4% 20,393,643
58.7% -3.6% -2.1% 57.5% 59.6% NPSR % 58.8% 60.7% 2.0% 3.2% 61.0%

(97,354) -60% (45,368) 75,178 29,811 Other Operating Revenue 1,254,687 526,249 728,439 138% 449,482

2,641,164 17% 525,166 3,050,197 3,575,364 Net Operating Revenue 23,995,827 22,484,165 1,511,661 7% 20,843,125

Operating Expenses

1,823,165 1% 17,562 2,065,215 2,047,652 Salaries & Wages 13,909,384 14,473,873 564,489 4% 12,857,498

245,115 22% 87,647 392,365 304,718 Benefits 2,658,228 2,731,651 73,424 3% 2,432,956

122,765 83% 39,828 48,272 8,444 Professional Fees 260,374 401,216 140,842 35% 898,423

238,237 -8% (17,880) 233,844 251,725 Supplies 1,785,548 1,704,047 (81,501) -5% 1,608,451

297,010 -19% (64,369) 341,970 406,338 Purchase Services 2,731,172 2,481,493 (249,679) -10% 2,340,870

25,963 1% 309 38,476 38,166 Utilities 284,801 280,425 (4,377) -2% 287,479

28,706 -6% (1,809) 32,769 34,578 Insurance 231,675 229,382 (2,293) -1% 200,161

66,455 -113% (62,566) 55,601 118,167 Other Expenses 426,014 370,332 (55,682) -15% 343,084

2,847,416 0% (1,278) 3,208,511 3,209,789 EBDITA Expenses 22,287,196 22,672,419 385,223 2% 20,968,923

(206,252) -331% 523,889 (158,314) 365,575 EBDITA 1,708,631 (188,253) 1,896,884 -1008% (125,798)

-7.8% 297.0% -15.4% -5.2% 10.2% EBDITA % 7.1% -0.8% -8.0% 950.4% -0.6%

Capital Cost

127,941 -4% (5,720) 131,791 137,511 Depreciation 901,488 922,539 21,051 2% 906,086

28,926 -72% (19,702) 27,342 47,043 Interest Cost 232,820 191,392 (41,428) -22% 203,414

3,004,283 -1% (26,699) 3,367,644 3,394,344 Operating Expenses 23,421,504 23,786,350 364,846 2% 22,078,422

(363,118) -157% 498,467 (317,447) 181,020 Operating Income / (Loss) 574,323 (1,302,185) 1,876,507 -144% (1,235,297)

-13.7% -10.4% 5.1% Operating Margin % 2.4% -5.8% -5.9%

0 0% 0 0 0 Mcare/Mcaid Pr Yr (3,822) 0 3,822 0% 33,392

Non Operating Activity

117,253 12% 10,330 89,195 99,525 Non-Op Revenue 616,649 624,365 (7,716) -1% 927,750

5,927 26% 1,085 4,250 3,165 Non-Op Expenses 30,975 29,753 (1,222) -4% 34,211

111,327 13% 11,415 84,945 96,360 Net Non Operating Activity 585,674 594,612 (8,938) -2% 893,540

(251,792) -219% 509,882 (232,502) 277,380 Net Income / (Loss) 1,156,175 (707,572) 1,863,747 -263% (308,366)

-9.5% -7.6% 7.8% Net Income Margin % 4.8% -3.1% -1.5%

 Unaudited

Pg 80 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA  

Pg 81 Board Packet



 
 

    LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 
REGULAR BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING 

July 31, 2024, at 3:30 p.m. 
Conference Room 1 & 2 and via ZOOM 
https://myarborhealth.zoom.us/j/88957566693 

Meeting ID: 889 5756 6693 
One tap mobile: +12532158782, 88957566693# 

Dial: +1 253 215 8782 
 

 Mission Statement 
To foster trust and nurture a healthy community. 

 
Vision Statement 

To provide every patient the best care and every employee the best place to work. 
 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

 Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Unexcused/Excused 
Absences  
Reading the Mission 
& Vision Statements 
 
 

Board Chair Herrin called the 
meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. 
 
Commissioners present:  
☒ Tom Herrin, Board Chair  
☒ Craig Coppock, Secretary 
☒ Wes McMahan 
☒ Van Anderson 
☐ Chris Schumaker 
 
Others present:  
☒ Robert Mach, Superintendent 
☒ Shana Garcia, Executive 
Assistant 
☒ Barbara Van Duren, CNO/CQO 
☐ Cheryl Cornwell, CFO 
☐ Shannon Kelly, CHRO 
☐ Julie Taylor, Ancillary Services 
Director 
☐ Dr. Kevin McCurry, CMO 
☐ Matthew Lindstrom, CFMO 
☒ Spencer Hargett, Compliance 
Officer 
☒ Barb Goble, Medical Staff 
Coordinator 
☒ Dr. Victoria Acosta, Chief of 
Staff 

Excused Absences:  
Commissioner 
Schumaker (Work 
Commitment)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

 

Pg 82 Board Packet

https://myarborhealth.zoom.us/j/88957566693


AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

☒ Clint Scogin, Controller 
☐ Jessica Scogin, Foundation 
Manager 
☒ Diane Markham, Marketing & 
Communications Manager 
☒ Jim Frey, IT Director 
☒ Julie Johnson, QMRC Manager 
☒ Buddy Rose, The Journal 
☒ Laura Glass, Interim Acute Care 
& ED Manager 
☒ Robert Houser, Imaging 
Manager 
 
Board Chair Herrin noted the chat 
function has been disabled and the 
meeting will not be recorded.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Approval or 
Amendment of 
Agenda 

Superintendent Mach requested to 
remove the Guest Speaker report, as 
well as to add Resolution 24-14-
Approving the Capital Purchase of 
the Kitchen Hood Replacement to 
New Business. 

Secretary Coppock 
made a motion to 
approve the amended 
agenda.  
Commissioner 
Anderson seconded, 
and the motion 
passed unanimously. 

  

Conflicts of Interest Board Chair Herrin asked the 
attendees to state any conflicts of 
interest with today’s amended 
agenda.   

None noted.   

Comments and 
Remarks 

Commissioners: Commissioner 
McMahan noted attending a 50th 
Class Reunion and shared about 
Arbor Health’s hospital, clinics, 
dedicated staff, a proactive board 
and a very bright future ahead.  
 
Audience: None.   

   
 
 

Executive Session  
• RCW 

70.41.200  

Board Chair Herrin announced 
going into executive session at 3:35 
p.m. for 10 minutes to discuss RCW 
70.41.200-Medical Privileging.  
Board Chair Herrin extended 
Executive Session by 5 minutes.    
The Board returned to open session 
at 3:50 p.m.  Board Chair Herrin 
noted no decisions were made in 
Executive Session. 
 
Initial Appointments: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Pg 83 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

Arbor Health 
1. Emily Johnston, MD 

(Emergency Medicine) 

2. Owen McGrane, MD 
(Emergency Medicine) 

3. Karen McGrane, MD 
(Emergency Medicine) 

4. John Hines, DO (Family 
Medicine) 

Radiology Consulting 
Privileges 
1. Brendan Harrison, MD 

2. Brian C. Tryon, MD 

Telestroke/Neurology 
Consulting Privileges 
1. Meghan Romba, MD 

2. Lien Nyugen, DO 

Reappointments: 

Arbor Health  
1. Anthony Fritz, MD 

(Internal Medicine) 

2. Don Allison, MD (Family 
Medicine) 

3. Stanford Tran, MD 
(Emergency Medicine) 

Radiology Consulting 
Privileges (Radia Inc.) 
1. Mark Winkler, MD 

2. Andrew Taylor, MD 

3. David Gorrell, MD 

4. Patrick Hurley, MD 

5. Jonathan Lee, MD 

Telestroke/Neurology 
Consulting Privileges 
1. Michael Marvi, MD 

Commissioner 
Anderson made a 
motion to approve the 
Medical Privileging 
as presented with 
adding John Hines, 
DO and Secretary 
Coppock seconded.  
The motion passed 
unanimously. 

Pg 84 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

2. Robert Lada, MD 

3. Kishan Patel, MD 

4. Lindsey Frischmann, DO 

5. Tarvinder Singh, MD 

6. Kinjal Desai, MD 

7. Kyle Ogami, MD 

Cardiology Consulting Privileges 
1. Hartaj Girn, MD 

Department Spotlight Board Chair Herrin noted the 
department spotlight is deferred to 
August.  

   

Board Committee 
Reports 

• Hospital 
Foundation 
Report 

Board Chair Herrin highlighted the 
following: 

1. The AH Foundation is 
putting a float in the 
Jubilee parade and selling 
50/50 raffle tickets, 
volunteers needed.    

2. The Independence Day 
Run had over 250 
participants, a great event. 

3. The AH Foundation 
Auction is scheduled for 
October 12th and accepting 
for donations.  This year’s 
Fund-A-Need is comfort 
furniture for the family of 
patients.  

   

• Plant 
Planning 
Committee 

Commissioner McMahan 
highlighted the following: 

1. PKA Architects presented 
a Master Facility Plan with 
potential ideas.  Planning 
for PKA to be a guest 
speaker at an upcoming 
board meeting. 

2. Property improvement 
updates year to date. 

    

• Finance 
Committee 
Report 

Commissioner McMahan 
highlighted the financial summary 
making note May and June were 
both strong months.  With both 
volumes and revenue up, naturally 
expenses follow given the supply 
needs.  All relevant to demand.  A 
positive net income YTD at 

   

Pg 85 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

5 | P a g e  
 

$878,840 moving the district over a 
million ahead of budget. 

Consent Agenda  Board Chair Herrin announced the 
consent agenda items for 
consideration of approval: 

1. Approval of Minutes 
a. May 29, 2024, 

Regular Board 
Meeting 

b. June 5, 2024, Plant 
Planning 
Committee 
Meeting 

c. June 12, 2024, QIO 
Committee 
Meeting 

d. June 19, 2024, 
Finance Committee 
Meeting 

e. July 10, 2024, 
Special Board 
Meeting 

f. July 24, 2024, 
Finance Committee 
Meeting 

2. Warrants & EFTs in the 
amount of $3,455,839.41 
dated May 2024 

3. Warrants & EFTs in the 
amount of $4,368,313.25 
dated June 2024 

4. Resolution 24-12-Declaring 
to Surplus or Dispose of 
Personal Property 

Secretary Coppock 
made a motion to 
approve the Consent 
Agenda and 
Commissioner 
Anderson 
seconded.  The 
motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Minutes and 
Warrants will be sent 
for electronic 
signatures. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Assistant Garcia 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
08.02.24 
 
 

Old Business 
• Board 

Education-
Cybersecurit
y Training 
w/KnowBe4 

Board Chair Herrin proposed the 
Board participate in Cybersecurity 
Training.  The Board supported 
moving forward with KnowBe4 
Training or something similar given 
the low cost per person, well worth 
it. 

Assign cybersecurity 
training in fourth 
quarter. 

Superintendent 
Mach & IT 
Director Frey 

Prior to 12.18.24 

• Community 
Engagement 
Discussion 

Board Chair Herrin recommended 
following up on the community 
discussions that the Board planned 
with the Kurt O’Brien training.  
Board Chair Herrin proposed 
creating a plan on where the Board 
wants to go from here for the rest of 
2024.  Superintendent Mach shared 
a calendar of this month’s events 

Create monthly 
calendar of district 
events and a script to 
stay on a similar path. 

Superintendent 
Mach 

Prior to 08.13.24 
Fire District 
Meeting 
w/Commissioner 
Anderson 

Pg 86 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

6 | P a g e  
 

that were available online in the 
District.  Superintendent Mach will 
plan to email monthly and please 
share if there are more to be 
included for opportunities to join 
into community district events.  The 
board remains focused on finding 
out what the community want from 
the hospital and how can we 
improve the experience.  Board 
Chair Herrin proposed picking one 
event per commissioner in the last 
five months of the year.  The Board 
will be there to listen, keep it simple 
and invite Superintendent Mach for 
Q & A.  In the meantime, 
Superintendent Mach will create a 
script in preparation to keep all 
board members on a similar path. 

New Business 
• Resolution 

24-13-
Approving 
the Capital 
Purchase of 
Physical 
Servers, 
Operating 
Systems, 
Storage 
Array & 
Networking 
Equipment 

IT Director Frey presented 
Resolution 24-13 noting the current 
IT equipment is aged and needs to 
be replaced.  The new equipment 
will be serviceable, a more stable 
platform, an expansion of resources, 
higher performance, more 
memory/storage and accommodate 
growth of the District. IT Director 
Frey confirm this was included in 
the 5-Year Capital Plan.   

Commissioner 
Anderson made a 
motion to approve 
Resolution 24-13 and 
Secretary Coppock 
seconded.  The 
motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Resolution will be 
sent for electronic 
signatures. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Assistant Garcia 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
08.02.24 
 
 

• Resolution 
24-14-
Approving 
the Capital 
Purchase of 
the Kitchen 
Hood 
Replacement 

Superintendent Mach Rob 
presented Resolution 24-14 noting 
the hospital received an NC1 
finding when DNV was onsite.  
This was a known issue that the fire 
suppression system in the kitchen 
hood is no longer UL compliant and 
needs to be replaced.   

Secretary Coppock 
made a motion to 
approve Resolution 
24-14 and 
Commissioner 
McMahan 
seconded.  The 
motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Resolution will be 
sent for electronic 
signatures. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Assistant Garcia 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
08.02.24 
 

Pg 87 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

7 | P a g e  
 

• 2024 WSHA 
& AWPHD 
Rural 
Hospital 
Leadership 
Conference  

The presented highlights of the 
conference which included insight 
on similar financial issues, ways to 
monitor risk, engaging the 
community and integrating quality 
of care.  Superintendent Mach was 
thankful that the conference was 
geared towards boards too this year.  
The Board appreciated EA Garcia 
for the lodging right there at the 
resort where the conference was 
located and hope to stay there again 
next year. 

   

• Board Policy 
& Procedure 
Review 

Board Chair Herrin presented the 
following policies/procedures for 
review and/or revision: 
 

1. Annual Adoption of the 
Compliance Plan-Marked 
as Reviewed. 

2. Annual Adoption of the 
Quality Program Plan-
Marked as Reviewed. 

3. Quality Improvement 
Oversight Information-
Marked as Reviewed. 

Secretary Coppock 
made a motion to 
approve P & P’s and 
Commissioner 
McMahan 
seconded.  The 
motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Marked three 
documents as 
Reviewed in Lucidoc 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Assistant Garcia 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
08.02.24 
 

Superintendent 
Report 

Superintendent Mach highlighted 
the memo in the packet and added 
the following updates: 

1. Our thoughts and prayers 
to a dear coworker in 
dietary this week.  Vi will 
be missed by all. 

2. Several clinical travelers in 
queue.  

3. Recruiting another 
massage therapist. 

4. Another successful 5K in 
Mossyrock. 

5. Ordered a new washer in 
dryer, both in the capital 
budget and staff are 
excited. 

6. PKA will present the 
master facility plan in 
September now. 

7. Inpatient numbers are 
already lower in July. 

8. Wipfli will present the 
2023 Financial Audit in 
August now. 

 
 
 

  
 

Pg 88 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

8 | P a g e  
 

9. Included dashboards 
comparing Arbor Health to 
other WA hospitals. 

Executive Session- 
RCW 42.30.110 (g) 
To discuss the 
performance of a 
public employee. 

Board Chair Herrin announced 
going into executive session at 4:56 
p.m. for 30 minutes to discuss RCW 
42.30.110(g)-To discuss the 
performance of a public employee.  
At 5:26 p.m. Board Chair Herrin 
extended Executive Session by 10 
minutes.  The Board returned to 
open session at 5:36 p.m.  Board 
Chair Herrin noted no decisions 
were made in Executive Session. 

Commissioner 
Anderson made a 
motion to approve the 
Superintendent’s new 
annual compensation 
in line with the 
documents and data 
provided by 
compensation 
consultant and 
Secretary Coppock 
seconded.  The 
motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Commissioner 
Anderson made a 
motion to approve the 
2024 & 2025 
Superintendent’s 
goals as presented by 
Superintendent Mach 
and Commissioner 
McMahan 
seconded.  The 
motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
File documents with 
HR. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Chair 
Herrin  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
08.02.24 

Meeting Summary 
& Evaluation 

Commissioner Anderson noted the 
Board went over time limits on the 
agenda.  Secretary Coppock noted 
the hospital is tracking.  Board Chair 
Herrin commended the work being 
done given the report updates in 
today’s meeting.  Secretary Coppock 
requested to move Compliance 
Committee from August 7th to the 
14th to avoid Jubilee week festivities.  
The Board agreed to the calendar 
change. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Move the calendar 
invite for Compliance 
Committee from 
August 7th to August 
14th. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Assistant Garcia 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
08.02.24 

Adjournment  Secretary Coppock 
moved, and 
Commissioner 
Anderson seconded 
to adjourn the 

  

Pg 89 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

9 | P a g e  
 

meeting at 5:45 p.m.  
The motion passed 
unanimously.     

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Craig Coppock, Secretary          Date 

Pg 90 Board Packet



 
 

    LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 
Compliance Committee Meeting 
August 14, 2024, at 12:00 p.m. 

Via Zoom 
 

 Mission Statement 
To foster trust and nurture a healthy community. 

 
Vision Statement 

To provide every patient the best care and every employee the best place to work. 
 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Unexcused/Excused 
Absences 
Reading the Mission 
& Vision Statements 
 
 

Secretary Coppock called the 
meeting to order via Zoom at 12:00 
p.m. 
 
Commissioner(s) Present in Person 
or via Zoom: 
☒ Craig Coppock, Secretary 
☒ Chris Schumaker, Commissioner 
 
Committee Member(s) Present in 
Person or via Zoom: 
☒ Robert Mach, 
Superintendent/CEO 
☒ Shana Garcia, Executive 
Assistant 
☒ Spencer Hargett, Compliance 
Officer 
☐ Cheryl Cornwell, CFO 
☐ Shannon Kelly, CHRO 
☒ Barbara Van Duren, CNO/CQO 
☒ Julie Johnson, Quality 
Management, Risk & Regulatory 
Compliance Mgr. 
☒ Matthew Lindstrom, Facilities 
Director 
☒ Jim Frey, IT Director 
☒ Julie Taylor, Ancillary Services 
Director 
☒ Jessica Neidert, Business Office 
Manager 

Excused-Cheryl 
Cornwell (PTO) & 
Shannon Kelly 
(Meeting Conflict) 
 
Unexcused-None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Pg 91 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

☒ Janice Cramer, Patient Access 
Manager 

 

Approval or 
Amendment of 
Agenda 

No amendments noted. Commissioner 
Schumaker made a 
motion to approve the 
agenda and Ancillary 
Services Director 
Taylor seconded.  
The motion passed 
unanimously. 

  

Conflicts of Interest Commissioner Schumaker asked 
the Committee to state any conflicts 
of interest with today’s agenda. 

None noted.   

Committee Reports 
• Compliance 

Operational 
Workgroup 
Recap 

Compliance Officer Hargett 
highlighted the workgroup minutes 
and the areas of focus which 
included the recent EMTALA 
investigations that were resolved 
and closed with DOH.  There are 
ongoing efforts being made with 
staff to remain compliant.  

   

Consent Agenda Commissioner Schumaker 
announced the following in consent 
agenda up for approval: 

1. Review of Compliance 
Minutes –May 1, 2024 

2. Review of Compliance 
Operational Workgroup 
Minutes –June 12, 2024 

3. Regulatory Audits 
Dashboard 

4. Annual Action Schedule 

Commissioner 
Schumaker made a 
motion to approve the 
consent agenda.  IT 
Director Frey 
seconded. Motion 
passed unanimously. 

  

Old Business 
• RA#2-

Contract 
Evaluations 

Executive Assistant Garcia shared 
growth with both focuses for 
contract evaluations; Tier 1 & 2-
highest risk to the District and 
Contracts with no evaluation 
completed to date.  The fact is the 
denominator continues to change 
with new agreements to the District; 
however, the good news is the latest 
requirements are consistently 
applied.  

   

Pg 92 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

• RA#3-E3 
SRA 
Findings/ID 
& Access 
Management 

IT Director Frey shared continued 
progress and/or mitigation efforts 
on the recent Security Risk 
Assessment.  Tentatively scheduled 
tabletop exercises.  The goal is to 
accomplish before October 2025.  
There are areas of concern 
specifically related to topics like 
access management.  While a 
much-needed effort, creating a role 
based/web access map with people 
who wear many hats will be 
challenging.  Another area is cyber-
attacks, so phishing campaigns are 
scheduled and happening to educate 
staff to stop and think before 
opening. 

   

• RA#4-
Privacy 
Event Trends 

Compliance Officer Hargett shared 
that several training efforts have 
been made addressing privacy to 
staff. 

   

• Compliance 
Program 
Update 

Compliance Officer Hargett 
highlighted the following: 

1.  EMTALA Investigation is 
officially closed with no 
fines with DOH. 

2. Reviewed HIPAA events, 
with clarification that AI 
voice recognition software 
is for medical information 
and in the demo phase.  
Received a policy template 
from Mason Health. 

3. Provided PRA update, as 
well as made updates to the 
website to help guide the 
public to medical record 
requests given often the 
records are medically 
driven versus public 
related. 

4. ADT Notifications statistics 
shared and need to update 
the policy and procedure, 
follow up needed. 

5. DOH Required Policies 
includes the Nurse Staffing 
Plan which has been 
provided, but on hold given 
all the law changes.  Need 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Verify if the ADT P 
& P has been updated 
to reflect process. 
 
Add asterisk behind 
Nurse Staffing. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Informatics 
Manager Potts 
& Patient 
Access Manager 
Cramer 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prior to the next 
Compliance 
Meeting 11.06.24 
for all action items 
in the Compliance 
Program Update. 
 
 
 

Pg 93 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

to add an asterisk with this 
notation. 

6. Records program was 
reviewed and need to 
update the Board policy. 

7. BAA Audit is trending 
positively. 

8. Items to DOH by end of 
April have been completed 
but still need to verify if 
Yearend Financial Report 
has been submitted. 

9. Q2 Compliance Workplan 
has an estimated 
completion of 62%. 

 
 
Edit Records 
Program Policy. 
 
 
 
Submit yearend 
financials to DOH. 
 
 

 
 
Compliance 
Officer Hargett 
& Board of 
Commissioners 
 
CFO Cornwell 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• New/Update
d Laws 
Dashboard 

Compliance Officer Hargett shared 
updates on laws that impact the 
District and their current status.  A 
couple to note is WSHA has filed a 
lawsuit on the L & I Administrative 
Policy Meal and Rest Break 
Protections for certain Healthcare 
Workers, registered with MRSC for 
the Small Works Roster and need to 
ensure the website is update and the 
Hospital Staffing Committee 
Charter was approved committee 
and need to ensure it was submitted 
to DOH.   

Verify the website 
has been updated 
with small works 
info. 
 
Verify the Hospital 
Staffing Committee 
Charter was 
submitted to DOH. 

CFMO 
Lindstrom 
 
 
 
CHRO Kelly 

Completed ASAP, 
both were due on 
07.01.24 
 

Meeting Summary & 
Evaluation 

Compliance Officer Hargett 
provided a summary report.   
 
Commissioner Schumaker noted a 
great meeting where we 
communicated well, concise 
information.  Secretary Coppock 
noted a great meeting too with tons 
of information to digest. 

   

Adjournment Secretary Coppock adjourned the 
meeting at 12:58 p.m.   

   

 

Pg 94 Board Packet



 
 

    LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 
Finance Committee Meeting 

August 21, 2024, at 12:00 p.m. 
Via Zoom 

 
 Mission Statement 
To foster trust and nurture a healthy community. 

 
Vision Statement 

To provide every patient the best care and every employee the best place to work. 
 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

Call to Order 
Reading the Mission 
& Vision Statements 
Roll Call 
Excused/ Unexcused 
Absences 
 
 
 

Commissioner McMahan called the 
meeting to order via Zoom at 12:00 
p.m. 
 
Commissioner(s) Present in Person 
or via Zoom: 
☒ Wes McMahan, Commissioner 
☒ Van Anderson, Commissioner 
 
Committee Member(s) Present in 
Person or via Zoom: 
☒ Shana Garcia, Executive 
Assistant 
☒ Cheryl Cornwell, CFO 
☒ Robert Mach, Superintendent 
☒ Marc Fisher, Community 
Member 
☐ Clint Scogin, Controller 
☒ Barbara Van Duren, CNO/CQO 
☒ Julie Taylor, Ancillary Services 
Director 

Excused: Clint Scogin 
(PTO) 
 
Unexcused: None 
 

  

Approval or 
Amendment of 
Agenda 

 CFO Cornwell made a 
motion to approve the 
agenda and 
Commissioner 
Anderson seconded.  
The motion passed 
unanimously. 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Conflicts of Interest Commissioner McMahan asked the 
Committee to state any conflicts of 
interest with today’s agenda.  

None noted.   

Pg 95 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

Consent Agenda Commissioner McMahan 
announced the following in consent 
agenda up for approval: 

1. Review of Finance Minutes 
–July 24, 2024 

2. Board Oversight Activities 
Commissioner Anderson noted 
additional alcoholic beverages not 
reimbursed for on the receipt for 
WSHA & AWPHD Conference 
Dinner.  Superintendent Mach’s 
check needed to be $48 versus $32. 

Collect the balance of 
$16.00 for alcoholic 
beverages. 
 
Commissioner 
Anderson made a 
motion to approve the 
consent agenda with 
amended 
reimbursement and 
CFO Cornwell 
seconded.  The motion 
passed unanimously. 

Superintendent 
Mach 

Prior to 09.18.24 
Finance 
Committee 
Meeting 

Old Business 
• CFO 

Financial 
Review 

CFO Cornwell shared insight on the 
financial overview sharing July was 
a slower month and the revenue 
pickups were in the ED, Physician 
Clinics and Outpatient Services.  
Wages are well within budget and 
benefits YTD are tracking.  
Operating Income is outstanding 
and ahead of budget.  YTD Net 
Income is positive driven by 
volumes, management on the 
clinical side of the house and charge 
capture by revenue cycle.  Cash 
decreased by one day and AR 
increased by three days.  This is a 
result of back up happening in 
coding which is why this process 
has been outsourced as we rehire 
for those who retired and moved 
away this summer.  
 
Commissioner Anderson inquired 
on the FTE Turnover Rate and 
while CFO Cornwell did not have 
details on the increase confirmed 
HR closely reviews.   
 
Commissioner Anderson inquired 
about the variance in all the clinics.  
CFO Cornwell confirmed the 
aggregate clinic services group 
numbers are correct; however, the 
clinics have shared services, 
management, staff and supplies 
making cost accounting difficult.   
 
Also, noted training and education 
expense line is below budget and 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepare statement 
explaining AH 
Foundation funding for 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CFO Cornwell 
& Controller 
Scogin 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
09.18.24 Finance 
Committee 
Meeting 

Pg 96 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

wondering if the District is 
investing in their employees.  CFO 
Cornwell noted employees may not 
be utilizing the funds given the 
COVID mindset, but also there are 
now virtual options to participate 
which is potentially cheaper and 
highly utilized.  Marc Fisher noted 
the AH Foundation significantly 
invests in AH employees, so funds 
are being allotted there too.  

training, education and 
scholarships to AH 
employees. 

 

New Business 
• 2024 Self 

Insured 
Health 
Insurance 
Overview 

CFO Cornwell noted the District 
continues to track within budget 
with some excess as the year plays 
out.  There are big claims on the 
books but the plan is working well. 

   

• AH 
Retirement 
Fund 
Update 

CFO Cornwell shared the 340B 
retirement plan is competitively 
performing well. 
 

   

• Capital 
Review 

• Wall Patient 
Lifts 

Superintendent Mach shared this 
capital request came from the Safe 
Patient Handling Committee.  This 
committee is focused on keeping 
employees safe while completing 
their jobs.  This lift is like the CT 
lift the only difference is they will 
anchor to the wall versus the 
ceiling.  The recommendation is to 
purchase two for two patient rooms.  
Not only will this assist in saving 
employees backs but improve the 
patient experience of ease of 
moving patients.  There are no 
installation costs.  This is a great 
investment and always a possibility 
to get more.   
 
The wall patient lifts were within 
Superintendent Mach’s spending 
authority but want to keep the 
Finance Committee informed of the 
investments we are putting back 
into the District. 

   

• Surplus or 
Dispose of 
Personal 
Property 

CFO Cornwell presented the list of 
assets for surplus.   
 
The Finance Committee supports 
the resolution and will recommend 

The Finance 
Committee supported 
requesting the Board’s 
approval of a 
resolution of the 

Executive 
Assistant Garcia 

08.28.24 Regular 
Board Meeting 

Pg 97 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

approval at the Board level in 
Consent Agenda. 

Surplus at the Regular 
Board Meeting.   

Meeting Summary 
& Evaluation 

CFO Cornwell provided a summary 
report.  
 
Commissioner McMahan thanked 
Commissioner Anderson for asking 
good questions again this meeting. 
 
Commissioner Anderson thanked 
CFO Cornwell for a comprehensive 
packet and noting the important 
items to be watching. 

 
 

  

Adjournment Commissioner McMahan adjourned 
the meeting at 12:48 pm.   

   

 

Pg 98 Board Packet



WARRANT & EFT LISTING NO.        2024-07 
 
RECORD OF CLAIMS ALLOWED BY THE 
BOARD OF LEWIS COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
The following vouchers have been audited, 
charged to the proper account, and are within the 
budget appropriation. 
 
                CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify, under 
penalty of perjury, that the materials have been 
furnished, as described herein, and that the claim 
is a just, due and unpaid obligation against 
LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 
and that I am authorized to authenticate and 
certify said claim. 
 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cheryl Cornwell, CFO 

We, the undersigned Lewis County Hospital 
District No. 1 Commissioners, do hereby certify 
that the merchandise or services hereinafter 
specified has been received and that total 
Warrants and EFT’s are approved for payment 
in the amount of  
 
$4,571,150.08 this   28th day 
 
of August 2024 
 
 
 
 
Board Chair, Tom Herrin   
 
 
 
Commissioner, Wes McMahan 
 
 
 
Secretary, Craig Coppock  
    
 
 
Commissioner, Van Anderson 
 
 
 
Commissioner, Chris Schumaker

 
 
SEE WARRANT & EFT REGISTER in the amount of $4,571,150.08 dated July 1, 2024 – July 31, 2024. 

Pg 99 Board Packet



Routine A/P Runs
Warrant No Date  Amount Description

134683 - 134703 1-Jul-2024         424,026.37 CHECK RUN

134747 - 134770 3-Jul-2024         103,062.08 CHECK RUN
134771 - 134792 5-Jul-2024         257,130.45 CHECK RUN

134793 - 134857 12-Jul-2024         221,570.02 CHECK RUN

134858 - 134882 15-Jul-2024         890,481.33 CHECK RUN

134883 - 134912 19-Jul-2024         193,488.27 CHECK RUN

134913 - 134966 19-Jul-2024         208,597.41 CHECK RUN
134967 - 134996 22-Jul-2024         193,228.19 CHECK RUN

134997 - 134999 1-Jul-2024          48,485.17 CHECK RUN

135000 26-Jun-2024          20,253.28 CHECK RUN
135001 2-Jul-2024              52.10 CHECK RUN

135002 - 135003 15-Jul-2024          10,072.92 CHECK RUN

135004 1-Jul-2024          27,470.86 CHECK RUN
135005 22-Jul-2024             500.00 CHECK RUN

135006 2-Jul-2024           1,617.06 CHECK RUN

135007 9-Jul-2024             308.66 CHECK RUN
135008 12-Jul-2024           4,379.50 CHECK RUN

135009 16-Jul-2024             157.92 CHECK RUN

135010 17-Jul-2024           3,706.31 CHECK RUN
135011 - 135012 23-Jul-2024             569.99 CHECK RUN

135013 - 135040 26-Jul-2024           4,587.36 CHECK RUN

135041 - 135054 29-Jul-2024       1,244,831.46 CHECK RUN

135055 - 135102 26-Jul-2024         199,564.56 CHECK RUN

135103 1-Jul-2024          29,039.74 CHECK RUN

135104 26-Jul-2024          19,189.01 CHECK RUN

135105 29-Jul-2024          19,707.29 CHECK RUN

135129 - 135131 30-Jul-2024          55,808.43 CHECK RUN

4,181,885.74$   

Error Corrections - in Check Register - Voids
Warrant No. Date Voided Amount Description

134883 -134912 19-Jul-24 193,488.27$       
ACH / CHECK RUN 
VOIDED WRONG DATE

Jul-24

ARBOR HEALTH WARRANT REGISTER

Total - Check Runs 

Pg 100 Board Packet



134605 26-Jul-24 8.57$             VOIDED CHECK

135025 26-Jul-24 45.00$            VOIDED CHECK

Total - Voided Checks 193,541.84$     

Eft Date  Amount Description
1229 5-Jul-24         194,131.41 IRS

4824 2-Jul-24           1,513.17 BBP

4825 9-Jul-2024             762.09 BBP

4826 12-Jul-2024             148.83 BBP

4827 16-Jul-2024             594.04 BBP
1230 19-Jul-2024         190,924.23 IRS

4828 23-Jul-2024             883.30 BBP

4829 30-Jul-2024             307.27 BBP

389,264.34$     

4,571,150.08$ 

TOTAL EFTS AT SECURITY 
STATE BANK

TOTAL CHECKS, EFT'S, 
&TRANSFERS 

Pg 101 Board Packet



 
LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 

MORTON, WASHINGTON 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARING TO 
SURPLUS OR DISPOSE OF PERSONAL 
PROPERTY       RESOLUTION NO. 24-15 
 
WHEREAS, the Lewis County Hospital District No. 1 owns and operates Arbor Health, a 25-bed 
Critical Access Hospital located in Morton, Washington, and; 
 

WHEREAS, the Lewis County Hospital District No. 1 feel that this is worthy, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commissioners of Lewis County Hospital 
District No. 1 as follows: 

 

That the equipment and supplies listed on Exhibit A, attached hereto and by this reference 

incorporated herein, are hereby determined to be no longer required for hospital purposes.  

The Superintendent is hereby authorized to surplus, dispose and/or trade in of said 

property upon such terms and conditions as are in the best interest of the District. 
 

ADOPTED and APPROVED by the Commissioners of Lewis County Hospital District No. 1 in 

an open public meeting thereof held in compliance with the requirements of the Open Public 

Meetings Act this 28th day of August 2024, the following commissioners being present and voting 

in favor of this resolution. 

 
___________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Tom Herrin, Board Chair                             Wes McMahan, Commissioner 
 
 
___________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Van Anderson, Commissioner                            Craig Coppock, Secretary 
    
 
________________________________                
Chris Schumaker, Commissioner 
 

Pg 102 Board Packet



 

 

 

To:  Finance Committee & Board  
From: Tina Clevenger, Materials Management Supervisor 
Date:  August 21, 2024 
Subject: Surplus or Dispose of Personal Property 
 

 
Surplus or Dispose of Personal Property (RCW 43.19.1919) 

EXHIBIT A 

DATE DESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT PROPERTY # DISPOSITION REASON 
08/2024 MAX VENTURI 

VENT 
RT 7191 DISPOSAL BROKEN 

08/2024 LTV 1000  RT - DISPOSAL BROKEN 
08/2024 ACCUTOR 

PLUS 
ACUTE 6863 DISPOSAL BROKEN 

08/2024 SHOWER 
CHAIR 

ACUTE 5751 NO LONGER 
USEFUL 

SURPLUS 

08/2024 TV ACUTE 5515 DISPOSAL  BROKEN 
08/2024 ARM BIKE RT 7169 NO LONGER 

USEFUL 
SURPLUS 

08/2024 STOVE HOUSE 5442 NO LONGER 
USEFUL 

SURPLUS 

08/2024 REFRIDGE HOUSE 6619 NO LONGER 
USEFUL 

SURPLUS 

08/2024 WASHER HOUSE 5907 NO LONGER 
USEFUL 

SURPLUS 

08/2024 DRYER HOUSE 5906 NO LONGER 
USEFUL 

SURPLUS 

 

 

Pg 103 Board Packet



LCHD No. 1's Policies, Procedures 
& Plans: Departments:

1 Medical Staff Rules & Regulations Medical Staff
2 Nurse Staffing Plan & Matrix DOH Policies & Procedures

In order to access the above documents you will need to log into Lucidoc.  Once you have logged 
into Lucidoc, on the top toolbar click "My Meetings" and select the upcoming Board meeting date 

that’s highlighted in green to see the agenda with documents needing to be approved.  You are 
able to view the documents once in the agenda.  If the date is highlighted in yellow that means 

the agenda has not been released yet.

Documents Awaiting Board Ratification 08.28.24

Pg 104 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OLD BUSINESS 

Pg 105 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

Pg 106 Board Packet



Pg 107 Board Packet



Pg 108 Board Packet



Pg 109 Board Packet



Pg 110 Board Packet



Pg 111 Board Packet



Pg 112 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPERINTENDENT REPORT 

Pg 113 Board Packet



 

 

 

To: Board of Commissioner 

From: Superintendent Mach 

Date: 08.28.24 

Re:  July Superintendent Report 

 

(Employee Kudos) 

“I have never worked for a company that cares so much about their employees and makes work fun, I am 
so blessed to be a part of this team!” 

• Very good financial month of July from outpatient services 
• CEO attended the Blueberry festival, loggers Jubilee and Morton FD meeting 
• Emma Dames has started 
• New quality management software is being installed 
• Working on purchasing bone density software for CT scanner, resulting in patients staying local 

who need this test. 
• 2 new patient lifts ordered. 
• Comfort chairs and couch are ordered. 
• Staffing has been tight as several travelers cancelled last minute on us. 
• Will resume work on Red house for Finance after discussions with attorney. 
• Signed Cardiologist contract, start date TBD. 
• Expansion of wound care services slated for September. 
• Expansion of medical massage services slated for September. 
• We have started our “Get with the Guidelines” stroke work. 

 

New physicians and Advanced practitioners so far this year 

• Dr. Hines – Morton 
• Dr. Emily Johnston – ED 
• Dr. Rachel Montes – ED 
• Dr. Owen McGrane – ED 
• Dr. Karen McGrane – ED 
• Emma Dames PAC – Randle/Rapid Care 
• Cora Krause PAC – Rapid Care 
• Sarah Perlman FNP - Mossyrock 

 

Pg 114 Board Packet



Pg 115 Board Packet



Pg 116 Board Packet



Pg 117 Board Packet



© 2023 American Hospital Association www.aha.org  |  May 2023  |  1

BY KIMBERLY A. RUSSEL   

Are there members of your 
board who never speak 
during board meetings? If 

the answer is yes, a clear governance 
improvement opportunity exists for 
the full board. Governance of today’s 
hospitals and health systems has 
never been more complex, with diffi-
cult decisions crowding many board 

agendas. Health care organizations 
— and their CEOs — rightfully expect 
fiduciary boards to operate at maxi-
mum effectiveness. To successfully 
navigate hospitals and health sys-
tems toward an uncertain future, the 
intellectual contributions — including 
the full voice — of each board mem-
ber are needed.    

Over the years, many boards 
have accepted as a cultural norm that 
some trustees attend meetings with-
out contributing to the board’s dis-
cussions. It is beyond time for boards 
to correct this aspect of boardroom 

culture. When a board engages 
100% of its membership in dialogue 
and decision making, the board takes 
full advantage of its assets – with 
effective governance as the result. 
Proactive board leadership, in con-
junction with the CEO, can tackle this 
change in boardroom dynamics.   

First Step:  The Diagnosis 

The board chair and CEO should first 
seek to understand why a board 
member is not an active discussant. 
For example, silence may have been 
unintentionally created by certain 
board structural and/or cultural 
issues. Alternatively, the lack of par-
ticipation may be an individual trustee 
performance problem. Board leader-
ship will need to examine all ele-
ments underlying trustee reticence 
before charting a corrective pathway. 
Common causes of nonparticipation 
among board members include: 

1. Board size. With a large board, 
there may not be enough ‘runway 
time’ in a routine board meeting for 
full participation by all members.

2. Advance preparation. Trustees 
need sufficient time to review and 
absorb board packet information 
prior to a board meeting. This is the 
key reason for the recommended 
practice of agenda and packet 
distribution at least seven days in 
advance of a board meeting.

3. Role misunderstanding. 
Trustees may not understand that 
participation in board discussions is 
a primary requirement of the board 

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES

Participation is 
Not Optional   
A board that engages 100% 
of its membership results  
in effective governance 

Pg 118 Board Packet

http://www.aha.org


© 2023 American Hospital Association www.aha.org  |  May 2023  |  2

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES

member’s role. This element of the 
trustee job description should be 
emphasized during the recruitment 
and orientation phase. 

4. Perception. The notion that 
differing or opposing points of view 
are not welcome. This is a particularly 
dangerous cause of selective silence 
in the boardroom. Newer board 
members often have a different 
frame of reference and offer a fresh 
angle to boardroom discussions. As 
boards seek to diversify their compo-
sition, it is essential that the internal 
board culture fully welcomes and 
invites a free range of opinions. 

5. Short tenure. It is not unusual 
for newer trustees to hold back 
on participation as the orientation 
and onboarding process proceeds. 
Ramp-up time may differ depending 
upon each trustee’s familiarity with 
the health care field, along with 
past professional and governance 
experiences.      

6. Education. Clear and concise 
educational and background materi-
als are foundational for participation 
in board room strategic discussion. 
Board members may also need a 
special tutorial on particularly com-
plex subject matter.   

Next Steps 

Board leadership, perhaps in 
conjunction with the Executive 
Committee or Governance 
Committee, should undertake a 
thoughtful analysis of current board 
structure and culture to answer this 
question: “Are our board processes, 
governance structure and board 
room culture positioned to promote 
full participation by all trustees?” 
Undertaking a board self-assess-
ment, another governance rec-

ommended practice, can provide 
helpful information and may indicate 
opportunities for improvement. Key 
questions to consider: 

• Is our board too large to include 
everyone in board discussions? 

• Does the board recruitment 
process include a clear description 
of trustee role expectations, includ-
ing active participation? 

• Does the board orientation 
process reinforce the importance of 
active participation by all trustees? 

• Do trustees have sufficient 
educational resources? 

• Is the board packet always 
available at least seven days in 
advance? 

• Does the board chair demon-
strate effective meeting facilitation 
skills? 

• Does the board exhibit an open 
and welcoming culture?   

• How does the board react to 
different opinions? 

Simultaneously, board leader-

ship should seek individual feed-
back from the nonparticipating 
trustee(s). At this early stage, 
this is not a corrective action 
conversation. Instead, the idea 
is to better understand the trust-
ee’s reluctance to participate in 
board dialogue. Ideally, either the 
board chair or vice chair should 
initiate this discussion, such as 
“let’s meet for coffee as I’d like 
to hear your thoughts on your 
board experience.” This private 
conversation is also an opportunity 
to expressly state to the trustee, 
“Your thoughts, opinions and past 
experiences are vital to our board’s 
discussions and decision-making. 
We welcome your voice in the 
board room.” In some cases, a 
dose of encouragement will open 
the door to fuller engagement. 

Tips from Board Chairs 

Experienced board chairs offer these 
additional suggestions to promote 
dialogue in the board room: 

• Inviting a comment, “Mary, 
you have significant experience in 
this area, what is your opinion on 
this matter?” 

• Contacting the board member in 
advance, “Jim, you may have noted 
on the agenda for next week’s board 
meeting that we will be discussing a 
potential new partnership. Can you 
be prepared to provide a few com-
ments on your perspective?” 

• Building a relationship with 
each board member outside of the 
board room so that the chair has a 
good understanding of each trust-
ee’s professional background and 
areas of strength.   

• Reminding the full board about 
the benefit of new and diverse 

TRUSTEE  
TAKEAWAYS

•   Active participation in board room 
discussion is an essential aspect 
of the trustee role. 

•   As board room diversity 
increases, boards can take proac-
tive steps to ensure that all voices 
are both welcome and heard. 

•    Standard board practices 
and governance structure can 
positively (or negatively) impact 
trustee engagement. 

•   The board chair is central to elicit-
ing full engagement around the 
board table. 

Pg 119 Board Packet

http://www.aha.org


© 2023 American Hospital Association www.aha.org  |  May 2023  |  3

BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES

viewpoints in the boardroom. For 
example, providing key comments 
as new trustees join the board, 
“We welcome these board mem-
bers with their diverse experiences 
and backgrounds. This board will 
be open to the perspectives and 
ideas that new trustees bring to the 
table.” 

• Facilitating board meetings so 
that dialogue is not dominated by 
just a few members. Some chairs 
ask all board members to speak on 
an agenda item before calling on a 
trustee for a second comment. 

Individual Trustee  
Performance Assessments 

The American Hospital Association’s 
2022 National Health Care 

Governance Survey Report explores 
trends surrounding board and 
trustee performance assessment. 
The report notes that 34% of boards 
conduct individual trustee perfor-
mance assessments. Seventy-six 
percent of all boards conducting 
individual assessments include 
“actively engages in board discus-
sion” as one component of the 
evaluation. Clearly, full participation 
is a significant aspect of a trust-
ee’s contributions to the board. 
Participation should be considered 
when a trustee is being evaluated 
for term renewal. 

Final Thoughts 

Today’s health care challenges 
require the complete engagement 

of the full board. For hospitals and 
health systems to succeed in serv-
ing their communities and meeting 
their missions, the active participa-
tion of every trustee is essential. 

Kimberly A. Russel 
(Russelmha@yahoo.com) is CEO of 
Russel Advisors, a health care gover-
nance consulting firm. 

Please note that the views of 
authors do not always reflect the 
views of the AHA.

Pg 120 Board Packet

http://www.aha.org
mailto:Russelmha@yahoo.com

	Appointment Request Form-08282024.pdf
	Medical staff privileging
	initial appointments-0
	Radiology Consulting Privileges
	Telestroke/Neurology Consulting Privileges

	Reappointments-0
	Arbor Health
	Radiology Consulting Privileges
	Telestroke/Neurology Consulting Privileges


	08.28.24 Board Presentation ED Highlights_Ball.pdf
	Arbor Health�Emergency Department�Vincent Ball, MD�Laura Glass
	Agenda�	
	Our Scope	
	Slide Number 4
	Emergency Medical Treatment & Labor Act��Affectionately known as EMTALA	
	Washington State Trauma System
	Washington State Trauma System Levels
	Arbor Health Level V Trauma
	Slide Number 9
	A Matter of Time. . .
	A Matter of Time. . .
	Washington State �Emergency Cardiac & Stroke System
	Washington State Emergency Cardiac & Stroke System
			2021-2024 Accomplishments
	 Patient Volumes/Dispositions: �01 Jan -17 August 2023/2024��
	Slide Number 16
	PRC Voices Report- ER
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	The Future
	Thank you Very Much!

	073124 Regular Board Meeting Minutes-DRAFT.pdf
	Arbor Health
	Radiology Consulting Privileges
	Telestroke/Neurology Consulting Privileges
	Arbor Health 
	Radiology Consulting Privileges (Radia Inc.)
	Telestroke/Neurology Consulting Privileges

	082824 Lucidoc Report.pdf
	LucidocReport




